
United lVi2fions

GENERAL
ASSEMBLY
FORTWIRST  SESSION
Of&id  R e c o r d s *  _

SECOND COMMITTEE
22nd meeting

held on
Friday, 24 October 1986

at 3 p.m.
New York

SUMMARY RECORD OF THE 22nd  MEETING

Chairman: Mr. de ROJAS (Venezuela)

CONTENTS

AGENDA ITEM 12: REPORT OF THE ECONOMIC AND SOCIAL COUNCIL (continued)

AGENDA ITEM  82: SPECIAL ECONOMIC AND DISASTER RELIEF ASSISTANCE (continued)

(a) OFFICE OF THE UNITED NATIONS DISASTER RELIEF CO-ORDINATOR

(b) SPECIAL PROGRAMMES OF ECONOMIC ASSISTANCE

lhis record is subject w. corrccrion.  Corrocdons  should k senr under  du  sigMwe  of a member of tk  dele-
gation conccmed  within  one mck  of the &re  of publication to tk Chief of the official Records Editing Section,

room tX2-75O.  2 Uniwd Nations  plwd. and bwxporatcd  in 1 copy of Ihc record.

Distr. GENERAL
A/C.2/4l/SR.22

Corrections will bc  issuul  after  rhe  end of the  session.  in a scpara~~  fszicle for each  Commintx.

86-56951 60495  (F)

3 November 1986
ENGLISH
ORIGINAL% FRENCH

/ . . .



A/C. 2/41/N\.  22
En41  itih
1’600 2

AC~CNUYI  I’l’ltM  1 2  I Hltl~lN’  OY  Pllli ZCQNOMTC  AND  !IOCTAT,  lX)IlNI!IL  (cont.  in110d)  (b/41  /.i,
h/41/118,  A/41/123, A/41/1*/9, A/41/315,  A /41 /319  and clorr.1  and Add.1 and  2,
A/41/320  a n d  Add.1,  A / 4 1 / 3 2 6 ,  n/41/329,  A/41/342,  h/41/34.1,  A / 4 1 / 3 4 6 ,  A/41/354,
A/41/302,  A/41/4?0,  A /41 /415 ,  A/41/461 and Corr.1, n/41/462,  n/41/474, n/41/m wd

Corr.1 J A/C.2/41/6,  n/C.2/41/7)  A/C.2,‘41/L.2,  11.3, L.4, L.14)  1s/lc,U6/6l1,
E/l9UB/L.30,  annox)

1. Mr. VL GAQWI  (Mauritania) said ho woYcomod  the  report  of  tho Uucrotory-Gonorul
o n  cosxckon  by  doeortificution  o n d  drouuht  (n/41/346-~/19N6/96),  w h i c h
dQk3Criboit  b r i e f l y  t h e  harmf,,l  uffoctn  of  t w o  n a t u r a l  dioLlotoro  t h a t  had  offliotod
Maur i tania  for almost 20 years, namely  drouuht, whoao ravauoo  wer’u well-known,  and
deoertification,  w h i c h  was  o f t e n  ovorlookod,  although  i t  h a d  already  nwo~&~wod  U[J
morO  t h a n  t w o  t h i r d s  OE  Maucitania’u  t e r r i t o r y  anU  attackad  oomo  20 other  countriou
i n  t h e  reyion. llie  deleuation  h o p e d  that  0 1 1  t h o  rocommondations  i n  t h o  report,
particularly tho one  concernina  the  orcanization  of  the round tablo  in which the
Competent United  Notions  aqencios would perticipeto , would he  appliucl  rapidly.
M a u r i t a n i a  w o u l d  oeok t o  onauro  t h o  HUCCOQO  ol’ thu roundtoblo  b y  invitinc  the
countrioe  whouo qonoroeity  had novor  failed  it , t o  w h i c h  i t  oxprc!fwod  1 tzfl  doopoflt:
uraLitudo.

2 . P a r a l l e l  t o  t h e  oteps  i t  hod t a k e n  t o  cornbet t h o  conooquoncoo  o f  odvcroo
climatic condition6 ond the recent  plaque of  Iocuute, hit) Government had trouyht  to
e l a b o r a t e  onCl  i m p l e m o n t  vrrrioua  short-term  end madium-tarm  prtxlronrmnon  aiinod  ot
naltinq  the  doterioretian  cf  t h o  c o u n t r y  ‘n eociol,  oconamic  a n d  financial
rrituotion. ‘rho  projacts  hf’ora  t h o  tiocond  C o m m i t t o e  rofloctod  h i s  Govornmont’u
dotermination to continue improvino  and routorinu  tho basic economic  ouuil  ibr  10
oouontiol  t o  sutrtoinod  and  lootins  qrovth. Mauritania hoped  that  tho  intcrnutionul
community would bo 4onorouo  a n d  h e l p  i t  t o  implomont  thono oiwryotic  lnourluro13  i t
h o d  odoptod doopitc  their  hiqh  uociill  coet.

3 . M r .  ntw-wmw  (Oboorvor  , Polostine  Liboretion  Oroantzution)  uxprcuucd
h e a r t f e l t  condolonceo  t o  t h e  poop10  of Morembiquo  f o r  the  trocrio  B o o t h  oi’ their
Proeidont,  who hod 0100 boon a friuna  of tho PLO.

4 . Ilo noted  that the  report:  OF  the Bocrotary-Gunoral  o n  onoiutonco  t o  thu
1’0141Utinion  p00p10  (n/41/319-~/l~~ue/‘~2)  uuaWXItod  the  fiolOino  o f  0 lni~lniol~ to
pr  apa  re a yroqr  amino I the  QlwUillq  doloy WCIU  roqruttublo,  and  h a  w o u l d  l i k e  to
rucoivo  uueuruiice  t h o t  the  miuti@n  w o u l d  LJQ  nunt  and thut the  pr04rumme  rctquostd
w o u l d  bo  ovuiloblc  f o r  conuidoration  by  the l~conoini~  ortd  Uoci~l  C o u n c i l  ot itch
oocor~d  roqulor  oonuion o f  1987.

5. Uuflgite  cortoin  ohortcxxninao, the  VLO woo  sotinfiod  with thu current ~utom  of
channel  1  inu IJnitud  Net  iorro rend othcrr  auuiotorxx.  t o  the  I’i.J~(?Htillfun  poopl@  in tit0
0ccupiud tcr  r itor  ioo, aopccially  i n  v i o w  oi’ the  currant  cIiL’~icultietI. ‘Ch uystulll
WUB f?tn’K!tionilW  and QhlJUld not  hQ talupc)rOd With. Howevu r , Jardon  wuu  crttockinu  i t
d i r e c t l y  b y  propouinu  it0  so-collod “dt?vul~~plllcl\t  Plut\” for: ttm mcu~>ioil  Palotlttni.al\

/ . . .



A/c.. 2/41/SR.  22
Ins 1 ish
laaae  3

(Mr. Ahu-KoashL_Qbeervar ,  PLQ)

ter r itor  tee. Did Jorden eeriously believe that the international community was
etill not aware thet the so-called development plan wae  simply  one of the measures
undertaken in oo-operation with the United Btatee  and Israel to undercut the
politiaal  power OP  the PLO in the oaaupied  Peleetinien  territorieo  eo aa io
facilitate the oreation  therein of an Ieraeli-Jordanian  condominium? A distinction
ehould be made between aidl  intended to erreet  the deterioretion  in the livinq
conditions OP  the Ralestinian  people caused  bv the l’ereeli  oceupetfon  a~¶  80”Called
Plane whiah were merely political beibee  almoB  at limitinq the wide eupport  of the
Paleetinian people for their eole  leqrtimate representative, the IV&,  and
perpetuatiny  t h e  Xaraeli  occupation. Whatever they did, the Untted  States, Inrael
and ail those who co-operated with them in their fiqht  aqainet the PLO in the uuiee
Of  eoonomic  or other plano oould not Purchase the will and coneoience  of the
Paleotinian  people or oeparate  them from the PUB.

6. He oallod  upon the international community to help the United  Nation0
Development Uroqramme  to build and equip the fishery  port whose conetruation,
oostinq  abaut $lS millton, had raoently been approved. That would be the Piret
etep in a projeot  to establieh  a eeaport  that would give Paleetinian firma  and
producte  direot  acceee  to external markete. The Ieraeli occupyinq  Power. had no
riqht  whatsaever to prevent the implementation of development project8  for the
Palestinian  people, for its occupation wae  illegal.

7. Leetly,  referrina  to Economic and Bouial  Council decioion  1986/67, which
tr!WIe!nitted  to t h e  Counoil,  a t  its  second r e q u l a r  aeeeion  o f  1987,  t h e  draft
decision submitted by the United State8  of Amerioa  concerninq  the admieeion Of
Iera  to the Economio  Commieslon  for Europe , he eaid  he would oppoee the admiseion
of Ierael  to any United Nation6 reaional commioeion Ed  lona ae it occupied
Paleetinian and other Arab territoriae. He would ale0  oppose any eimilar attempt8
ooncerninq  South Africa until the apartheid oystem  had been diamantled.

8. &.  BAHADXAN  ( B r a z i l )  said t h a t  hi.8  country’8 p o s i t i o n  ccmoerning  the
preparmtiun  of the code of onduot Yor tranonational corporationa  bud  somotimeo
been used aa a pretext to juetify  the ecanty  prcxrsee  achieved. However, Brseil
waB  reedy to eccept not one but tW oeto of  rulee , 80  that the text of  the code
could be tinalired,  and hopeU  that ite  conetruativo  attitude  would be reflected in
the Committee’s  work.

9. Mr . BAKER (Office of the Directar Qenarel for Devolopment and International
Ec!onomio  Co-operation), replyinq to the FIX), said that the Secretary-General had in
Laat approved the tieldina  oP  a mission ta prepare B proqramvlo  of economic and
eooial  oeoiotance  to the Baleetinian  people1 the mieeion, whoeo  mandate ond
duration, an well 18 other details, had  yek to be  dacidod,  flhoulcl  take pluce  early
in 1987.

/ . . .



A/C. 2/41/M.  22
Bngl  ieh
Paqe 4

AGENDA ITEM 82:  SPECIAL ECONOMIC  AND DISASTER RELIEF ASSISTANCE (continued)

(b)  OFFICE OF THE  UNITED NA’JIONS  DISASTER RELIEF CD-ORDINATOR  (A/41/3, A/41/295
end Corr.1)

(5)  SPECIAL PROGRAMMES OF ECONOMIC ASSISTANCE (A/41/3, A/41/308, A/41/369 and
Corr.1,  A/41/395, A/41/396, A/41/522, A/41/538,  A/41/592, A/41/593, A/41/616,
A/41/679, A/C.2/41/L.S)

10. Mr. BITAR (Lebanon), relerrinq  to the question of the lack of security for
international etaff in Lebanon an8  their absence from that country, recalled that
security  Phase  V, declared by the United Nations , was  still in effect, although it
no longer truly corresponded to reality. With a few rare exceptions, the
international staff evacuated from Lebanon were still not permitted to return.
However, the situation in tha’; country wae  not a8 baa aa people tended  to believe
ana  certain area8 haa  already been calm for a long time. It should therefore be
paw :e ‘;o  take into account both condderatione  relating to the safety of such
persoIrnel  and the need to cu>ntinue  implementing the development project8  begun in
Lebanon. Hi8  Government  had taken many atepa to improve security  in Beirut itself
and lioped  that the Secretary-General would at last  be able  to fill the pr~t  of
Co-ordinator  of Assistance for the Reconetruction  .nd  Development of LeLancn.

11. His  Government, which haa never stopped implementing its reconetruction
pr0gramme,  in ao  far ae poeeible  sna subject to the availability of funds, was  in
the proceee  of defining new projects that could be implemented in the current
circumltsncee,  with the aeeistance  of the United Nations system  and  donor
countries. Significant problem8 atill  remained uneplved,  however, ana Lebanon
hoped that it  would be  able to count on increased  external aeeietsnce. Such
assistance was  neceeeary becauee  Lebanon had paid  and continued to pay an enormous
price for policiee  which were not its  own and originated in regional and  world-wide
conf  litter conflicte  between the Lebanese alone could not explain the scow,
eeverity  and duration of the violence. The Lebanese people were neverthelees
determined to overcome the crieie  and transform Lebanon once aaain  into the oasis
of peace and fraternity it had been in the Past.

12. Mr. KEFFYALEW (Ethiopia) said that the relentless efforts of the people, party
ancl  Governme,rt  of Ethiopia, aswell ae  the qeneroue eeeietance of the international
community, had made it possible to prevent the drouqht  which haa  stricken the
country in 1984-1985 from becoming a cataetrophe. The drought had ehown the extent
to which positive  international co-operation could  help to.remedy  numerous problems
and how indiepeneable  the United N;tione  wae. Hir  delagation therefore regretted
the decision to cloce  the Office for Emergency Operatiol,?r  in Africa in the near
future. Ongoing activitiee remained neceaeary ana ehould not fall victims to
reform and restructurino  meaaurca taken for reason8 of economy.

13. The Oft lee of the United Nations  Disaster Relief Co-ordinetor  (UNDRO) ale0
Playef3  a eic?ificent  role in areas  affected by natural dieaster.  In view of the
increaeino *deauency  of dieaetere,  both man-made ana  natural, the United Nations
eyetem  ehould give proper attention and eupport to UNDRO BO that it could
etrenqthen its  htlmanitarian  activities.

/ . . .



A/C. 2/41/8R.  22
English
Page  9

(Mr. Kef fyalew, Ethiopia)

14. Natural  diaaetere  know  n o  borders, which was  why eeveral East  African
countries had  decided to create the Intergovernmental A+qency  for Drouqht and
Development (IGADD)  , which wae now fully operational. Each State member of IGADD
had committa~d  itself to making the Aqency  a strong inetitution which was  capable of
co-ordinutinq  the varioue activities undertaken by member States not only to tackle
the aons,quoncee  of natural disaetere  but aleo  to help eolve subregional
developmant8a1  problems that made those countries vlllnerable.  Aa member COUntriea’
reeourc(Pa  khare  limited, however, the qeneroue aeeietance of donor countriee,
aovernmentsl  and non-qovernmental  agencies and financial inetitutione were needed
if it wao to act effectively.

15. At ite thirteenth special eeesion, the General Aaeembly  had adopted a
Proqramlue  cf Action for African Economic Recovery and Development aimed at
responding to the short- and lone-term development needs  of Africa. The Af r ican
countr  ice, for their part, had reaffirmed that the main reeponeibility for African
development. rested with them and had aqreed to accord top priority to the
development of their economic and social sectors  and to mobilize  their available
reeourcee  to that end. The maanitude of the problem was euch,  however, that the
itlternatiorral  community had columitted  itself to eupportinq Africa’s  effOrte*
Ethiopia hoped that the developed countries would participate in that important
endeavour and was  for ite part ready to participate actively in the implementation
of the Programme of Action.

16. Wr.  BASTIAN  (German Democratic Republic) said that hie country, which aided
firmly with the peoples of Africa , Aeia  and Latin America in their etruqqle for
eocio-economic  progreee  and aqainst  all form ‘of imperialist oppression, aleo  had  a
policy of providinq emergency relief to all countries which needed it. Thus.  in
1985,  it had provided urqent relief in the form of equipment, medicines, foodetuPfe
and other eeeential qoode  to 24 countriee. It had also sponsored  General Aeeembly
reeOPUtiOne  40/232 and 40/234 on aeeietance to Nicaraqua  and Mozambique
respectively . The citizens of hie  country wure  in solidarity with the etrugqle  of
the people of Nicaragua against  the imperialiat  atCacka of the United Statee  and
oent donation@ to that country for reconstruction work. In 1985, the Solidarity
Committee of the German Democratic Republic had also provided humanitarian
aeeietance to PI&J,  SWAPG and ANC. Laetly,  hie  country, had cent  emeraency  relief,
through the International Committee of the Red Croes,  to the victima  of the
earthquake in El Salvador.

17. It wa8  regrettable that certain States had yet to abandon their attempts to
uee relief operations a8  a mean8  of exertina presksure  on proqreseive AevelopMnte
in countriee stricken by emerqency situatione. The apartheid policy of the
Pretoria r&gime  had adverse ooneeouencee  for the persistent etruqqle auainst
emerqency situatione  in the African front-line Statee. Thus, i n  t h e  p a s t  f i v e
year6  alone, the economic damsqe  caused  to the countciee of southern Aft ica had
amounted to more than SUS  10 billion, making  the adopi.ion of mandatory sanctions
aqainet the South African regime all the more imperative.

18. With reqard to the letter dated 16 July 1986 addreeeed to the
Secretary-General by 11 Weetern  States (A/41/461), table 3 annexed to that letter

/ . . .



A/C. 2/41/SR.  22
Enql  ish
Paoe  6

(Mr.  Baetian, German Democratic Republic)

qave a false impression of the activities undertaken by his country and other
socialist States in the field of disaster relief. Par  an accurate  account  of  such
activities,  he referred members to the report  of the Secretary-General contained in
document  A/41/295.

19. With reqard to resolution 1986/47  of the Economic and Social Council
concerning the Office of the United Nations Disaster Relief Co-ordinator  !UNDRO),
hie  deleqation endorsed the principles set forth in paraqraph 3 whereby relief
operations of the United Nations system  must respect strictly tht sovereignty of
States affected by emerqency situationm. It also supported UNDRO’s  future
activities and co-ordination measures and believed that the framework in whtch
those activities had been dealt with thue  far in the Economic and Social Council
and the General Assembly had proved scccessful.

20. Lastly, with reqard to disaster prepsrednens, it must be pc Itted  out that no
country was immune fran  industrial disasters and that the latter should be taken
into account, in co-operation with other international orqanizations, in emerqency
planninq. His country therefore supported the relevant activities undertaken by
UNDRO, in co-operation with UNIDO,  UNEP and IAEA, and had siqned the conventions o n
early warninq and asaista,,ce  in l-he  event of a nuclear accident adopted at the
special session of IAEA held at the end of September 19R6.

21. Ms. ADIW(XI0  (Indoneeia)  said that, beina  itself a country prone to natural
disasters, Indonesia had consistently el;pported  the activities of UNDRO. The
increasinq  complexity and magnitude of the relief provided in recent years, which
had quadrupled since the beginning of the decade, had called for qreater
co-oidination  of relief operationu within the international community, hiqhliqhtinq
the important role of inter-aqency consultation.

22. One of the most important lessons to be learned from the unprecedented
disaster that had swept Africa was the need for improved preparedness and
prevention for which, as with relief operations, primary responsibility  rested with
recipient Governments. All relief operations should be carried out aud
co-ordinated  in conformity with the priorities of the countries concerned.
National systems of readiness  such as early warnina  and public education systems
were thus essential, as were long-term scientific, technical end policy measures
combined with economic, social and legal measures  and information and traininq
efforts, in order to ladsen  the impact of disastera. In Indonesia, UNDRO wan
involved with UNDP and &nor countries in pre-project planninq for etrenqtheninq
Indonesia’s national disaster management capabilities.

23. It was  ironic that, at a time when DNDRO  inuet  deal with an unprecedented
number of emerqency situations, the Gerberal  Assembly had apprctpriated  fewer funds
to it for the biennium 1984-1985  and extrabudqetary contributions had been
extremely uncertain. Her deleqation wished to recall that the Economic and Social
Council itself had emphaeized how essential it was for the international community

to place UNDRO on a sound financial basis and to respond positively to the appeals
Of the Secretary-Gensral  for contributions to the Trust Fund.

/ . . .



A/C.Z/Il/SR.  22
Enqlieh
Paqe  7

(Me.  Adiwoao,  Indonesia)

24. With reqard  to special economic aasintance proqramam,  she recalled that
doclbta  h d been expreased recently an  to the efficiency and coat-•Cfectivenees of
such  proqrammes and that the Secretary-General had been roquerted  to report end
present recommendationa on waym and means of l nhancinq the implementation of theme
proqrammes, includinq  the mobilization  of reaourcea  necessary  for their
implementat ion. The Committee had before it not only the report of the
Secretary-General (A/41/308) but alao decision 1986/165  of the Economic and Social
Council which recommended to the General Aaeembly  the adoption of a draft
resolution endorainq the  key recommendations of the Secretary-General on that
subject. As in the Council, her deleqation supported the draft resolution, on the
understandinq  that the views and interests of countriea  benefittinq from special
proqrammas would be taken fully into account.

25. Mr. WILLIS (United Kinqdom) ,  speakinq on behalf of the countrice  of the
European Community, said it was ueeful to recall that the intention of the special
proqrammee of economic assistance  wag  to provide abort-term assistance  to countriem
experiencing epecif ic and immediate probloma  and they muat  be clearly
distinquishable  from reaular  proorammea  of the United Nations system. In order to
make the best use of available resources  and reapond  effectively to needs,  a more
precise  definition of those proqrammee nuet  be agreed upon u)  aa to avoid
duplication and competition. The proqramnes  should aloo  be ioteqrated into
exietinq co-ordination mechanisms. In that respect,  the EC countr  ie.8 welcomed the
further involvenant of UNDP and the World Sank throuqh round tables and
consu l tat ive  groups . They also welcomed the lead co-ordinatinq  role that had been
accorded to the UNDO  Reqional Bureau for Africa.

26. Draft resolution A/C.  2/4l/L.S  watr  a f irat step  towards enhancinq  the
ef f iciencg of special economic aaaistance  proqrammem. If the concept warn  to retain
ite  value, proqrammes should not be renewed automatically oath  year, a8 was
sometime6  the came. The EC countries therefore l tronqly supported the
recommendation in paraqraph 3 that the rpecial economic amistance  proqramme  for a
country ehould terminate after the review mission and that any  continuinq
responsibilities  should then be tranefcrred  to the regular programme6  of the
ayetem. It was essential that the numbel  of beneficiary countries should be
limited to those aenulnely  in need of euch  assistance.  The countries which had
been included in the proqrammee for aetreral  yearm  mhould  therefore be urqed  to
reassess  their need6  and study the pcsoibility  of integratinq nuch  aid into rwular
development proqrammes.

27. Mr. CHEKAY (Union of Soviet Socialist  Republics) said thst in 1985 the volume
of assistance provided by the USSR to developing countries had constituted
1.5 per cent of itr qroas  national product and had increased by 7 per cent compared
with the previoue  year. In that same year, throuqh the Red Cross and Red Crescent
Societiee, the Soviet Union had also p~ovidcl  assistance on 35 occaeione to 28
countries faced with emerqency  situationa.

2R. Hia  deleaation  believed that special economic aeeiatance and disaster relief
ohould be provided onlv on the request  of the Governments concarl  ed  and should not

/ . . .



A/C. 2/41/SR.22
Bnql  ish
paire S

(Mr .  chckay,  USSR)

8erve  a s  a pretext  for  interference in the internal  affairs of States. I t
therefore  objected to the recommendations of certain United Nations missions which
favoured the penetratton  of private capital into the dcvelopina countries.

29. The OPCice  of the United Nations Dise.+ter  Relief Co-ordinator unquestionably
carried out useCu  work, but it was increaa .qly becominq  involved in
implementation activities, to the detriment of its co-ordination functions. The
USSR wan  opposed to the use of special proqrammes  of the Office to provide
assistance  in situations which were not really natural disastera. It thus felt
that paraqraph  15 (h) of the report of the Secretary-General (A/41/593) was,  to say
the least, inappropr late.  Moreover, the mechanism of inter-secretariat
consultations on questions of disaster relict  should operate solely on an ad hoc
basis and at the request of the States concerned, as was  envieaqed in General
Assembly resolution 36/225. Under no circumstances should that mechanic.  be a
subetiLute  for intergovernmental bodies, in particular the Security Council, the
Economic and Social Council and the General Assembly, and it was not authorized
either to judqe the exceptional nature of a situation ariainq in a particular
country or to decide on the need for assistance from  the United Nations without the

aqreement  of Governments. The Secretary-General should therefore submit to the
Economic and Social Council an?  the General Aaaembly a clear and detailed report on
the activities of that mecha’  m.

30. The USSR took note with satisfaction of the activities of the Of Cite  of! the
United Nations Disaster Relief Co-ordinator aimed at supportina the efforts made by
developinq countries to prevent and overcome natural disasters, and it believed in
the value of seminars, such as the seminar held in the USSR, with the participatton
of the Office and other bodies, concerning the prediction of earthquake8 and
measures  to be taken to limit damaae. The Off ice should be encouraqed  to  make more
rational use of the means available to it, however, particularly its pereonnel,
which was top-heavy, as could be seen from annex II of document A/41/295.

31. The USSR supported the recommendation in document A/41/308 that special
economic assistance prwrammes should be conceived of as performina  an eesentially
catalytic role of limited duration in response to special situationa anI  aqreed
with the Icretary-General that it was not the responsibility of the World Bank to
implement the General Assembly resolution on the provision of special economic
ass i s tance . Section II of the report accorded too much importance to the
round-table process of UNDP and the meetinqs of consultative qroups of the Bank in

Cormulatina national development plans, co-ordinatina policies and mobilizina
resources . The Soviet Union also  wished  to point out that under the pretert of
co-ordinatina assistance, the major Western countries were tryinq  to interfere even
more in the economies of liberated countries and pursue a policy of neo-colonialist
exploitation, as was revealed by paraqraph 68 of document A/41/592. Thus the round
tables and c,onsultative  qroups souqht to establish conditions Ca! .,urable  to
transnationel corporations in the developing countries and to limit the role of the
puhl ic sector. In view of those circumstances, the attempt made by 11 Western
countries to discredit the assistance provided by tho Socia;).hc  countries wae
provocative and completel\  failed to take into account the real situation, which
was more accuratelv  described !n the r,eport  of the Secretary-General (A/39/267).

/ . . .



h/C.L/41/8R.22
Rnql  ieh
Psqe 9

(Mr.  Chekay, UBSR)

32. His deleqation  firmly condemned the policy  of the South African cacint r6qime
and VIII\  convinced that international asaiatance would not h! able to play its role
fully until Israel ‘a occupation oil  Arab lands and its pal  icy  of aqqreeeion  againllt
the Palestinian people had ended.

33. M e .  DANIELSEN  (Norway), rpeakinq  on behalf oC the Nordic countries,  aaid  that
today no one questioned the need for  disaster preparedness or uaa  unaware OC the
delays In  the pcoviaion  of asaiatsnce  and hence thr additional sufferinq  which
could be caused by a lack of information and co-ordination. It was  therefore
eeeential to structure the varioue mechanisma of the United Nations  aystem  and
co-ordinate the actions of bodies  concerned with disaster relief  euch aa the-  OCCiCe
of the United Nation6  Disaster Re.;ieC  Co-ordinator,  lJNRWA,  UNHCR and also UNICEF;
UNDP and WFP, so as to ensure that they could act swiftly end efficiently.

34. The Nordic countries continued to believe in the value OC  special. economic
atraistance  proqcammee, the number of which bed  jncreaaed  conaidecably since they
had been introduced 10 years previously. However, they believed that the
proorammea should ba clearly differentiated from reqular proqrammea and should be
aimed solely at alleviatinq crisee. Nor  eove r , their implementation  was not
satisfactory, and should be entrusted to the ceaular operational system  of the
United Nationa  so as to avoid duplication and atcenqthen their effectiveness.

35 . On the eubject  of the Office of the United Nations Disaster  Relief
Co-ordinstor, the Nordic wunt.riea  noted with satisfaction the qood functioning oC
the computerized  Disaster Information Data Base Svatem and the improved situation
reports,  which - if they were to be really effohtive - should howover  be prepared
In close co-operation with the various aqencies  in the United Nations  system.
Furthermore, note ehould be taken of the efforts made by the Secretariat to improve
the evaluation of UNDRO.

36. The crisie  in Africa demonstrated the need to reconsider the relationship
between emergency aid and medium- and lonq-term development assistance. Links
between the central functions of the United Nationa  and field operations must be

imploved,  duplication must be minimized  and sufiicient  uae must be made of the
available reacurceu. In other worda, the time had come to review the role of the
United Natione in the area of emtroency  aaeiatance, particularly the relationship
between UNDRO  and UNDP.

37. The Office for Emerqency  Operations in ACr  ica, which would aoori  cease to
function as a txcparate  entity, had proved that the United Nat.ione  could plav a
constructive and sfftctive role in a crisis and had shown that active  co-ordination
of relief efforts was  crucial in order to achieve optimum reeulta. The Nordic
Countries therefore euqatatcd  that the Secretariat should consicIer  how the varioue
relevant United Nations aqencics  providing tmerqency relief  could beet be
orqaniztd, co-ordinated and rationaliztd in order to tnnure  the moat  efficient
util ization of rteources.

/ . . .



A/C.  2/41/SR.  22
Bnql  ieh
Paqe 10

38. Mr. KIBEDI (Uqanda) said that his deleaation attac.led  qreat importance to

aqenda  item R2,  particularly Rub-item 82 (b), which dealt with the situation in
Uqanda, awon  other thinqs. For yeara  the Uqandan people had been subjected to a
reian of terror, with nothinq but a diplomatic silence  aa  a reaction  from the rest
of the world. When  the National Resistance Movement had come to power after years
of’ Ciqhtinq, it had found a countrv  in a state of devastation. It had aiven hiqh
priority to safequardinq  the fundamental human riqhte of all Uqandane and set up a
Government of national unity, in which virtually all political qroupinqa  -
includinq  some of the Novement’s  former opponents - and the military were
participatinq in order to achieve national reconciliation. All Uqandanta had been
encouraged to join in the national reconetruction  endeavour. The qoal  of the
Government’s ten-point proqramme was to make Uqanda into a democracy that was
focused on development in all areas, co-operated with other African countr  lee  and
defended the human and democratic riqhte of its brothers in other parts of ACriCae
in the context of an economic strateay based on the concept of a mixed economy.

39 . The Secretary-General’s report provided a considerable amount of useful
information and detail about the various problema  confrontinq  Uqanda. The Uqandan
Mission was entirely at the disposal of all those who believed they could offer
Uganda some practical assistance and therefore wished to have further details.

40. The Uqandan Government  fully recoqnized  that it could not depend entirely on
external help to redress the country’s economy. It had therefore already
implemented measures desiqned  to reduce unnecesrary  public expenditure and stresncd
self-help projects throughout the country. Guided by the democratic principles on
which its policies were based, it coneulted  the Wandan people on matters aCCectin9
them directly and was endeavourinq  to encouraqe  them to take an interest  in their
own affairs and to elect their own representatives throuqh local committees. Undo  r
the Emerqency  Rel’ef  and Rehabilitation Programme, much work had already been
carried out under the direct KeSpOnBibility  of the Ministry of Rehabilitation.
UNDP, UNHCR, UNICEF and a number of other aqencies, ao well ae friendly countries,
were providina aesietance  in areas where the needa  were most pressinq. Uqanda,
which required both immediate and lonq-term assistance, was now askinq  the
international communit\,  to come to its aid. The Uqandan Government itself would
spare no effort in its endeavour to restore peace, democracy, unity and prosperity

to the country.

4 1 .  M r . RAKOTONAIVO (Madaqascar)  said that he had noted with great interest the
information set forth in the Secretary -General’s report in document A/41/295.
Since Madaqaacar was frequently the victim of natural disasters owinq  to its
qeoqraphical  position, it attached particular importance to t.he  activities of the
Office of  the IJnited  Nations Diaaeter  Relief Co-ordinator in the areae  of
prevention and the strenqtheninq of the various forms  of intervention. It also
welcomed the  effort made by UNDRO  with a view to strenatheninq  the capacity of the
United Nations wetem to reepond to disasters throuqh the improvement of the
orqanization of concerted relief proqrammes and the ‘*livery  of relief supplies,
through the  establishment of qeneral-purpose Cundina and through the improvemen. Of
the capacity to evaluate damage and estimate relief requirements within the
system. At the same time, his deleaation wished to reaffirm the impCKtanCe  it
attached to the evaluation of the economic impact of disasters.

/ . . .



A/C.  2/41/SR.  22
Enql ioh
Paqe 11

(Mr. Rakotonaivo, Madagascar)

42. On the question  of the role that UNDRO could play after the relief ntaqe,  hiu
delegation  endorerd  the Secretary-General’s  comments on the need to accelerate the
process  of reconmtruction  and rehabilitation That wan an area where UNDRO could
provide direct liaison between pomsible  donorr and the country that had been etruck
by a diearter by providing information in itr final reportm  - for the countries
likely to perticipate  fn the rehebilitation  plan - on the requirementm  identified
for the f inal  rtaqe  of aenietance. With reqard to the mandate of UNDRO and the way
in which UNDRO intervened, he wished to reaffirm hia  rupport for General Assembly
resolutions 2816 (XXVI) and 3243 (XXIX). Owinq  to its humanitarian purpoue,  UNDRO
had  always  reeived  support from the Walaqaey  Government, perticularly  where
increaeee in the volume of  ite reuources  had bean  concerned. Medaqaecrr  would
continue to qive  UNDRO  th*  name  support in the future.

43. His deleqation wished to expreem the qretitude  of the Malaqaey  Government and
mop10  to all those who bed  come to Medaqascar’m  aid when it bed  repeeteUly  &en
struck by cyclones. As could be seen from the report in document A/41/522, the
current lrvel of implementation of the special proqramme  of economic assistance warn
extremely low (under 50 per cent). It therefore appealed to the international
community to continue to provide assistance at the current crucial stage  of the
country’s rehabilitation and development.

44. Mr. ELGHOUAYEL  (Tunisia) said that at ‘a  time when an effort warn  being made to
rationalise and strengthon  the effectiveness of the Orqanization,  it was important,
in the consideration of proqremme  co-ordination and implementation in the extrttnely
important area of l merqency and disaster relief, to take account of a number of
relevant reports and reeolutions, such am the remolution  adopted by the Economic
and Social Council at its second regular reseion  of 1986. me  qeneral trend in the
debate that had taken place in the Fifth Committea  on the issue in question should
also be borne in mind.

45. Since the United Nation8 activities In the area of emergency relief operations
were vital, Tunisia would continue to euppo~  t fully and contribute to the bodies
responsible for carrying  out the operations. Moreover, it wiuhed  to reaffirm its
consistent position in rupport of the utrenqtheninq  and rationalisation of
co-ordination and implementation in the area in question end in support of the
efforts made in that connection in the contrxt  of  operational activities for
development, for which UWDP remained the ke,r  executinq  aqency. It welcomed the
initiative taken by the Secretary-General with a view to l neurinq the follow-up of
UNDRO  activities in Africa, which confirmed the need to strenqthen even further the
key co-ordinatinq  role and l xecutinq capacity of UNDRO.

46. Africa had proved to be the continent  momt  vulnerable to natural dieaeterm.
The United Nation8 Programme of Action for  African Economic ReCOVeKy  and
Development 1986-1990  was intended to reinforce the qrowth and devc’,,pment  of the
African countries. Throuah  sustained and lonq-term economic development, the
African continent would be better adapted to reeiet natural diesstare.

/ . . .



A/C. 2/41/SR.  22
Enql ieh
Paqe 12

(Mr.  Elybouayel,  Tunisia )

47 . His deleqation recoqnized the need to eepsrate emerqency  aeslatance  from
lonqer-term development aeeiatance  and,  for  that  reason,  wished to stress the
importance of increasinq  the autonomy and independence of  the Of f ice  of  the
Co-ordinstor  aa the only meane  o f  unnurinq  rapid, f lex ib le  and ef f ic ient
co-ordinat ion act ion. I t  there fore  considered  that the mandate of the  O f f i ce  o f
the Co-ordinatoc should be reaffirmed in accordance uitt,  the recommendations made
in  1986 by the Economic and Socia l  Counci l  and with other  re levant  re8olUtiOnS  o f
the General  Assembly.

48. Mr.  QhSSm (Democratic  Yemen) aaid  that  the que8tion  o f  satisfyinq  the need8
o f  developina  countr ies  which  were  t’I. I victim8  o f  natural  diBaRter8  or  other
dieaater  Bituationn  w a s  a fsource  o f  great concern because  it was not covered by
regular  proqrammes of  the United Nation8  eye&,,.. A certain amount of proqreae had
been made in that respect since  the launchinq  in  the mid-19708 of  tire  f i r s t  special
economic assistance proqramme. His deleaation approved the conclueiona  and
recommendations contained in the report of the Secretary-General submitted under
General Assembly reeolution  40/236  concerninq  special  economic aasiatance
proqrammes (A/41/308-E/1986/67), and in particular  the remarks contained in
paraqraph  37 on the adjuetment  of  ptoarammee  to the speci f ic  requirements  of
individual  countr ies  and the co-ordination of  operation  8  w i th in  the United Nat ion8
eyatem 80 as to  achieve the ef f ic ient  and ef fect ive  UBe  of  ava i lab le  reeources.  A8
the Under -Secretary-Genera l  for  Specia l  Pol i t ica l  Af fa i r8  had pointed out, the
arrangements whereby UNDP would be reeponeible  for implementing General Aseembly
resolut ions re lat inq to  specia l  economic aes ietance in  countr ies  where a
round-table process wa8 under way should help to improve relation8 between
recipient countries,  donor countries and thoee  re8pOnsible  f o r  executinq
proqrammeg.

4 9 . In view Of the qrowinq number Of countries benefiting from such proqrammes, it
wa8 important both to mobilize  more f inancinq and to improve efficiency of
implementation. He wondered whether i t  wa8 necessary  to  aend inter-agency miseione
to  countriee  to  determine the type of  proaramme  appl icab le  to  a  qiven situationr
the Office of the UNDP Resident  Representative could undertake euch  evaiuotione.
Hi8  deleqation wa8  in  favour  of  maintaintna  the t rust  fund for  epecial  eCOnOmiC
aseistance  proqrammee  f o r  t h e  channellina  o f  contributicns.

SO. As for strenqthenina  the capacity  of  the United Nat ion8 avrrtem  to  dea l  w i th
natural die;lsters  and other di8aBier  Bituatione, hi8 deleqation wa8  in  favour  of
the idea of  dieaeter  prevention and planning at  the nat ional  leve l  set  forth in  the
report  oP  the Secretary-Cdneral  on  the Off ice  o f  the  United  Nat ion8 Dieaster  Rel ief
Co-ordinator  (A/41/295-E/1986/6,5). The proposal8 and recommendation8 containxl  in
the report  should  he lp  improve the  e f f ic iency of  the  work of the Of f i ce  of the
Co-ordinator .

51 .  Mr . MULLER  (Australia), re forr inq  to  dra f t  resoluticn  A/C.2/41/L.8  ent i t led
*Specia l  economic assistance  proqrammee” recommended for adoption by the Economic
and Socia l  Counci l  at  i t8 eecond reqular  eeBsion, recal led that the Austral ian
delcqation  had supported the adoption by consensue  of  Counci l  decis ion 1986/165.

/ . . .



A/c’.2/4l/SR.  22
Enql  ish
Paqe  13

(Mr.  Muller,  Auetrslis)

As the report of the Secretary-General (A/41/308) made clear, special economic
asnietance  proqrammes should be restricted to countries which were in need of such
nsnistance  and to special circumstances that did not fall within the competence of
the  regular programmes of the United Nations aymtem, and they should bo of limited
durat ion . Hin  deleqation  oupported  the recommendation contained in the
Secretary-General’s report that rpecisl economic aeefatance  proqrammes should be
conceived of an  performinq an essentially catalytic role of limited duration in
reeponse  to special sttuationo. In that spirit it had eupported draft resolution
A/C.Z/Il/L.S, which should qo a lonq way to re-establishinq the credibility of
thoee proqrammes while improkinq  their efficiency.

52. Mr. BAI XINGJI (China) said that numerous natural disseters in the past yesr
had qiven  rise to qrest  tragedies. It was rearettable that mankind was still
incapable of fiqhtinq most of such disamters, in spite of the economic and
technical levels reacheJ. It was, however, encouraqinq to note that the
internstional  community, toqether with the agencies of the United Nations sy8tem
responsible for disaster relief, had taken the initiative to ocqanire  and provide
help to a&f1  icted  countries. The  results achieved had shown that international and
multinational economic and technical co-operation was indispensable.

53. During the previous year China had itself suffered floods, typhoons and
earthquakes which had claimed several thousand victim0  and had caused billions of
dollars worth of damaqe. Takina into account the limited resources of
internationsl relief, the Chinese Government had decided to rely mainly on its own
efforts to assist people in the afflicted areas in the various regions of the
country. The Chinese Red Cross had also done its beat to provide a8sistance  to a
number of other countrier  afflicted by thoee types of dfsaater.

54. The Chinese delegation approved the Secretary-General’s proposal contained in
document A/41/295 to strengthen the capacity of the United Nations system  in the
area of natural and other disasters. It also approved the recommendationa
contained in document A/41/308  to improve the efficiency of the special  economic
assistance programmes. It was pleased to note that many developing countries hsd
adjusted their development strateyies and policies in line with their national
conditions and  had achieved positive results. However. he noted with concarn that
some developing countries, in pertlcular some lcaet  developed countries, were more
vulnerable  to the effect9  of natural disasters because of their poor infrastructure
and rapid population growth. Development obviously attenuated  the effects Of
natural dieasters. Aware that the qrowth of the developed countrieo  would be
nindered  if the economic situation of the developinq countries did not improve
markedly, his deleqation  expressed the hope , as it had already done at the fortieth
session of the caners1  Assembly, that the international community would spare no
effort to promote the lonq-term development  of dieseter-str:cken  countriee  in the
third world to enable them gradually to take over thrir own reconstruction and
rehabilitation and thua embark on a course of sound development.

/ . . .



A/C. 2/41/SH.  22
Enql  ish
Paqe 14

55. Mr. TAKASHIMA  (Japan) snicl  that his country , which lived under the constant
thraat of  earthquakes, felt deep eympath)  with the Government and people of
RI Salvador and had instantly ceeponded to their appeal6  for dsaintance.

56. The Japanese Government, in appreciation of UNDRO’a  activities,  had always
qiven the Office its full support. Since 1979 it had been contributina  to the
Trust Fund, and it had co-operated recently with UNDRO by dispatchinq  team8  of
expertn  to the aitel:  of disasters and intended to co-operate further in that
field. Hia  deleqation welcomed the international community’s effort.8 to make
UF’DRO’e  activities more efficient. The recent proposal  that, in addition to itlr
present  activities,  UNDRO nerve also an an operational orqanization for the
procurement dnd  dietr ibution of relief euppliea should  be carefully considerAd,  in
the liqht of the Office’m  mandate, which wan tl.at  lJNDR0  should play the role of
Catalvat  and CO-OKdinatOK.

57. Refecrinq  to aqenda item 82 (b) , Spectal  proqrammem  of economic assistance,  he
stressed that it was  important to enhance the efficiency  of such programmes,  in the
liqht of the efforts beina made to improve the efficiency of the United Nation8
administrative and financial functioninq  and to rationalire the work of the Second
Commtttee. In order to make the mont  effective use of the reeources  available,
Hpecial  economic aeuietancc  proacammee  ehould be carried out only in countries
which qenuinely needed that type of assistance OK when the asaietance  required fell
outaide  the competence of the reqular  proqrammea of the United Nations system.
Fur thermore, those  proqrammea  ahould be limited in their duration. Indeed, the
Secretary-General had made recommendations to that effect in his report (A/41/308).

58.  MK. SMITH (Jamaica) said that his  country, located in a qeoqraphical area
prone to natural disasters, attached particular importance to the activities of
UNDRO and was  in favour of enhancinq  its capacity tc play an effective role in
copinq  with diaasters. The number of disasters in which UNDRO had provided
aeRistance  had qrown considerably in the pant mix  years and humanitarian assiotarrce
in cash  OK kind provided by the international community had grown to over
$2 billion in the momt  recent biennia,  .#. UNDRo’a  V i t a l  role  WaII  O n e  best  Carried
out from its current place within the orqanizational  structure of the United
Nationa  ayetern, and deserved the full support  of tt, international community.

59. UNDRO’e  activities in the area of disaeter preparedness and prevention were
ale0  vital: the loan of life and the destruction that inevitably accompanied
natural disastern  must be minimized. Relief, no matter how well co-ordinated  and
effective, rlaf!  PK  iina~  ily  intended to cane human eufferinq and did not diminish  the
value of prevention in any way. Losaee  KeRultinq  from natural disasters Were
probably hiqher  than would normally have been the cane in developinq countries,
because financial difficulties were caueinq nome  of them to neqlect  maintenance and
even lower buildina standards.

60. In  recent  years, Jamaica had given  much attention to dedisinq  national plane
and to establiflhinq  and atrenqthenina  national etructures  in the area of diaastes
pr eparecinefls  . Work wnf+  co-ordinatcd at the sub-reqional  level within the framework
of the Pan-Caribbean Disaeter  Preparedness and Prevention Project, aet up in 1981,

/ . . .



A/C. 2/41/SH.  22
Knq  1 inh
naqc  I’i

(Mr. Smith, Jamaica)._.----

which aleo  provided technical aseietance. Jamaica axpreseed  its appreciation to
the donors which had assisted the project, includinq  t h e  U n i t e d  Ytateu  Aqency  Ear
International Development, the Canadian International Development Aqencv and the
Z~~ropesn  Economic Community. taet ly ,  his  deleqation orqed member countries,
particularly the major donors, to provide voluntary financial oupport to UNDRO.

61 . Mr. BROWN&  (Fij i )  said that  l i fe  in the Pacif ic  Ialands  was  larqaly  determined
by the vaqaries  of  nature. Natural  disasters  in the form of hurricanes, cyclones,
floods, landslidea and tidal  wavea took a heavy  tol l  in  human and material
reeourcee,  forcina  a reorderinq  of prior itiee  in development planu. Fij i  and its
neighbours in the South Pacific would have been seriously handicapped in their
recovery efforts,  had it  not been for the aenetous  aaeietance received Prom the
international  community. Fiji  had encouraqed  the  ooncept  af  eelf-help amonqst  i ts
people and had established an Emerqency  Services Committee,  which was activated as
soon as  a natural di.saeter  struck. Nevertheless , outs ide help remained
indispensable and Fij i  thanked Austral  is , New Zealand and the international
community a s  a  whole for their  ass istance. UNDRO was particularly active and
of f ic ient . The Government of Fiji had no quarrel with the recommendation of the
Group of 18 that UNDP should consider ahaorbinq disaster relief  operatione,

rovided  that the relief  and co-ordinatinq functions of UNDRO could be continued
naffected.

62. Mr. HASSAN (Djibouti)  said that hie  count.ry had been a  benef ic iary  of  a
special proqramme of economic assistance  since 1978, when the country had been
facinq  critichl  socio-economic problems as a consequence  of rcqional  conflict
exacerbated by the influx of displaced Persons ‘and the drouqht which had decimated
livestock and displaced  one third of the rural population. D j i b o u t i  wae s t i l l
providinq shelter for many refuqees  and was st i l l  expsriencinq the effect8  of  the
drouaht. Situated in one of  the most  arid region8  of the world, Djibouti nuffered
from the scarcity and irreqularity  of  rainfal l , which impeded any meaningful
aqricultural  developmentr  moreover , the nature of  the land i tself ,  of  which on ly
5 per cent was suitable  f o r  cult ivat ion, d id  not  provide the necessary incentive to
invest  in  aqr  i cu l ture . Animal husbsndry, which had traditionally been the mainstay
of the population, wae  no lonqer  a  viable means of  subsistence,  an  overqrnzinq and
drouqht had wrouqht a  chanqe  in  the ecoloqlcal  system. Consequently,  the curs1

population was becominq  more and more dependent on urban centres and Djibouti was
importing almost all  foodstuffs needed for local  conoumption. Pr oepecr  s for
industrialization  were not 7ery  l ncouraqinq either, owinq to the lack of raw
materials  and the hiqh coat of enerqy. Althouqh qeothermal  enerqy wae  believed to
offer some  promise, exploitation of  that ensrqy  reouired  capital  investment and
technoloqy,  which Djibouti did not poaseea  in  suff ic ient  quantity. Under those
circumstances, it  was plain that developinq  the service sector wan of particular
importance, and  Dj ibout i  thanked all  participant8 In  the 1903 donors’ conference.

63. The east African countries of Ethiopia,  Kenya,  Somalia,  Sudan,  Wanda  and
D!  ibout  1, reaffirminq  their common desire to combine their efforte,  had establ ished
the Tnterqovsrnmental  Authority on Drouqht and Development. The recoverv and
rnhabilitatton  proorammea de:4iqned to meet that tormidoble  challenqs  could not be

/ . . .



A/C. 2/41/SH.  22
Enql  ish
Paqe 16

(Mr. Hazean,  Djibouti)- -

implemented without the support of the international community, to which the member
countrlee  of the Interuavernmentsl  Authority had reiterated their sppaal  for
support at  the donors’ conference expected to take place from 16 to 18 March 1987
in Djiboutt.

G4.  M r . NGARYANAN (Chad) aaid  that the report of the Secretary-General on special
programmes of economic aeaiatance (A/41/592) preeented  a clear idea of the
difficultiea  confronting developing countries. In the caoe of Chad, two other
phen0mt.m  which aggravated the socio-economic  eituation  could be added to the
negative factors referred to in ihe  report of the Secretary-General8 the war of
aqqrelreion  imposed  on Chad by the terrorist  and expanzlonist  Tripoli rdginn,  which
occupied over half of the national territory, and the plague of locuote,
qraashoppers  and rate which had attacked the crops. The amergency  situation
persist&, agqravated by the war ,ffort,  which drained the few reaourcea  available
to Chad to relieve the sufferings of it8  peoples. The food  situation remained
precarious. In view of that uncertainty, the idea of constituting a stock of
20,000 tona  of cereals to tide the country over, recommended by the
PAO/WFP/multi-donors  evaluation mission in October 1985, wa8  worth reviving.

65. The solidarity -1emonatrated  during past diesstare gave reason to hope that the
international community would again assist Chad in overcoming its difficulties.
Althwqh the aesistance  provided by countries and international orqanizationa  tn
1982 had made it poseible  to rebuild the essential links in the economy, the
aaaistance provided following the appeal launched in 19R5  still remained at the
promiseory  atage.  *‘)erk  fore, his delegation reiterated the appeal launched to the
donors on 6 October by the Minister of Poreign  Affairs and Co-operation of Chad to
fulfil the commitments they had made. Chad, a land-locked ccuntry,  whoae
sovereignty and territorial integrity were being violated by an overarmed neighbour
and which was a’flicted  by tSumcrous  plnyuea,  had  few reeovrce#  for its
‘Aevelopment  . Resentially, it counted on external financial flows to recover the
economic level?  it had enjoyed before the tragic events  which it continued to
endure, and to try to reduce the :lufferina  of  ito  battered peoples. The Government
Oe Chad renewed its full confidence in the United Natione, which could be of qreat
help in the  realization of its hopee.  ‘Ib  that end, it called upon all the State6
Members once aqain to adopt, at the  forty-first session, bl  resolut ion on economic
assistance  to  Chad.

66. Mr. MAYA-PALENCIA  (Mexico) thanked the international community for ita support
durinq  the 1985 earthotiakes , which had caused considerable losses of human live8
and property. The Governments, citiztne and communities  of 63 frimidly  nuntriee
had demonstrated their support for Mexico. Important ptreonalitisa  had 1mmediatel.y
visited the disaster scene. Mexico had received  397 tone of medicines, 226 tone of
medical equipment, 957 tons of foodstuffs, 365 tons of machlnes  and vehlclta,
16 tone of rescue  equipment, 4i tons of tools and A62  ton?  of clothing, blankets
and campinq  equipment. Rescue  ttame, doctors and disaster and rescue experts had
aleo been dispatched to the scent. The firat  stage  had been funded throoqh the
reeOurcea  of the National Reconstruction Fulrd, the government author  itlea and
through private source8  and multilateral credit tnatitutiona. The United Nations

/ . . .



A/C.2/41/SR.22

Enql  ish
Paae  17

(Mr. Maya-Palencia,  Mexico)- -

1,.-l.  :.‘J,A  1-l :hat  ~rocees  from the beainninq by adopting resolution 40/l  On
. . .~nrt;r  1985. His deleqation  thanked the Secretary-General for his  report on

Lqt .rrarional  relief to Ptexico  (A/41/369 and Adc.l),  based on informstion
communicate6 by the oountrien  concerned. Mexico had wished tc  pay tribute to 359
Governments, entities or institutions which had distinguished themetlves, and to
the r;Jividuals who had Wne  ?ikewise  in rescue, assistance and relief operations,
ny  conferr  inq upm  Lhem t&Be “National Recoqnition  Award of 19 September”. He also
expressed hie  qratitude  to the United Nations and to the orqanizations within its
system  vhich  had offered their help, such as PAO,  UNICEF, UNDP, WHO, the Office of
the United Nations Co-ordinator for Disaster Relief and WFP.

6-l. c. BENMOUSSA (MOrOCCO)  , recallina that 22 resolutions and 3 decisions had
Men  adopted without a vote a?  the fortieth &s&ion,  on the item “Special
proqrammeu  nf  economic assit3tance*, hoped that the Committee would do the same at
the forty-i irs+  seaeion, takinq account of the often disastrous situation of the
de,elopiuq  countr  iea concerned by those proorammes. The fact that 20 African
countries profited from such proqrammee underscored the extreme vulnerability of
the major iLy  of African countr ice , which experienced chaotic situations
c’~ar?cterized  by unusually severe so  in-economic tensions. Africa use  the
least-favoured reqion  of the world. I #as  r.  reaion that was potentially rich in
resourCea, but a disaster area accordin to all the socio-economic indicator,;.
That meant that the crisis could not be solved by a sprinkling of projects and
proqrammee, even ones which were well deeiqned and co-ordinated, but reouired
stepped-up, conslL;tcnt  and lonq-ranqe al-forts on the part of the international
commu[~~.ty, qoina ’ ,yond  the United Nations Proqramme of Action for African Economic
Recover\  and Dev*,  lpment  1986-1990. T h e  emerqpncy  ai lations  must be taken into
conaide  ation  t o  t h e  e x t e n t  t h a t  m a n y  e f f o r t s  faithf< f and  courageous ly
undertaken by numerous African Governments were fruitless becauec  of unpredictable
complex disaetere and natural piaques, which were all the more devastating becauee,
in most African countr ien, there were practically no early-warninq systems or
disaster prevention and preparedness proqrammea. In that reqard.  tnc
representative of  the United States had correctly highliqhted the recent !nvazion
of the desert locuRt, which plagued 25 African countries and threatened many
o t h e r s . He urqed  the United States of America, actinq  throuqh the Agency for
International Development, to undertake urqently the requisite QLOteCtiOn,

treatment and prevention actions for the benefit of all the affected countries, in
co-operation with the other donor countries and competent orqanizationa of the
UnitelI  Nations system.

68. He welcomed tl,u? action undertaken by the United Nation11  OZfice  of the Cisaster
Relief Co-ordinator on behalf of numerous developinq countrL?s,  and expressed a
juntifiable  concern about the fate reserved for it by the Group  of Hiqh-level
Intt!rqovernmental  E x p e r t s , whose recommendation 24 (A/41/49)  stipulated ‘The united
Nations Development Prwramme  should be requeeted  to consider the feasibility of
takinq over the functions currently performed by the Office of the United Nations
Diaaeter  Relief  Co-ordinator.” That recommends t ion, which was even more unpopular
and un ju! ~fied  than manv others, could be cr  iticixed in many re sects, as several

/ . . .



A/C. 2/41/SR.  22
Cngl ish
Page 18

(Ml.  Benmouasa  t Morocco)

delegations had pointed out. hbbrOOVOK, the Economic and Social Council had
reaffirmed at ita  second regular uenaion  in 1986, in reeolution  1986/47,  the
mandate  of the Off ice of the Co-ordinator , 61  defined in General Aeeembly
resolution 2816 (XXVI). That renolution,  which aimed to set I &J  a permanent office
which would be the focal point for disaetor  relief matters, aleo epocificd that
that office ehoulU  be a dtstinct  element within the United Nation8  Secretariat on
the one hand, and that the oa-ordinator  should  report directly to  the
Secretary-General and would be authorised to act on his behalf to relieve human
suffering and to co-ordinate international sssietance, on the other hand.

69. There had been 53 emergency eituatione  in 1985, ee  compared to 12 in 1980.
All there  disaaters nad underocored  the irreplaceable  role of the Office  of tha
Co-ordinator AQ  a ke)  element for the immuliate  mobilizetion  and co-ordination of
humanitarian emerqency  and relief operationa, which were to be distinquiehed  from
assistance of  an economic nature. The reeourceu  of the Office of the Co-ordinator
came primarily from voluntary contributions and counted Ear a mere 0.3 per cent of
the regular budqet of  the United Nations.

The meeting rose  at 6.20 p.m.


